
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel  
 

Dear Member, 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 

held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 
Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Monday, 26 July 2021 

 
TIME:  6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members only to take place at 5.30pm) 
 

VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE ON THE RETURN TO FACE TO FACE MEETINGS 

FROM 7 MAY 2021 

Please see the attached guidance on the arrangements for the return 
to face to face meetings. This guidance includes information about 
the venue, the control measures in place, COVID-19 lateral flow tests 

and travel options. 
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Derive Update.  

 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

4   LIME E-Scooters Update.  

 
(Pages 13 - 22) 

5   Update regarding incidents of flooding over the weekend of 9 
July 2021.  

 

 

6   Minutes of meeting held on 5 July 2021 and matters arising.  

 
(Pages 23 - 26) 

7   Draft Work Programme.  

 
(Pages 27 - 28) 

8   Any other business.  

 

 

9   Date of next meeting - Monday 27 September, 6.00pm (Briefing 

for Panel Members at 5.30pm).  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602 
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 



The return to face to face council meetings from 7 th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 

Government now requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, committees, panels 
and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so members of the public 
can attend in person. 

 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 

place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
utmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment, 

Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized 

venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure 
way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 

Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 

meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following:   
 

1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space. 

2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 

your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 

building. 
4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 

pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 

with you when you arrive). 
5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 

complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

 You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 

o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 
 

 If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 

Democratic Services at decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

 

 If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 

PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   
 

6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


 you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face to 

face meeting.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

 By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

 By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 

from 100 Embankment. 

 By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 

located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public 
 

 

REPORT OF INTERIM STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PLACE  

 

TO 

GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL  

ON MONDAY 26TH JULY 2021 

 

TITLE: DERIVE UPDATE  
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The panel are asked to note the report.  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The report provides an update for Members on the progress being made in 
establishing a legal structure for the Council’s housing delivery model. This includes 

the registration of a subsidiary Registered Provider where a detailed application for 
Derive RP has recently been submitted to the Regulator of Social Housing. The 

application also included Derive RPs first business plan to provide 129 homes across 
four sites at social rent to be delivered between January 2022 to August 2022.  

The report also provides a development update on the four schemes currently on site 

and the work being undertaken on progressing a further three schemes. This 
includes working with two community led housing organisations – Inspiring Housing 

and the Broughton Trust. The report concludes with a development update from 
Derive Group Co – the original Derive company – and now the parent company and 
future ambitions. 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None – a number of slides and visuals will be 

shared at Scrutiny Panel. 

 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 2 

 

DETAILS: 
 

1. A City Mayor decision was taken in August 2020 to create a new legal 

structure for the Council’s housing delivery model. This structure is to be 
wholly owned and directed by the Council and a key element was to bring 

forward an application for registration of a subsidiary Registered Provider.  
 

2. This report provides an update on the legal structure that has been created for 

the delivery of the Council’s housing delivery model, progress on the 
application for the registration of a subsidiary RP - Derive RP - and its 

business plan. It also provides an update on developments currently on site.  
 

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS  

 
3. The August 2020 report recommended the incorporation of a group of 

subsidiary companies owned and controlled by the Council. It recommended 
that the Group should initially comprise Derive Group Co, Derive RP, Derive 
PRS and Derive Dev Co, the last two being subject to a clear business plan 

that demonstrated the additionality needed and how those subsidiaries would 
operate.  

 
4. These recommendations have been progressed with the existing Derive 

(Salford) Ltd becoming the Group Co and a company limited by guarantee and 

non-charitable being incorporated as Derive RP Ltd. Derive RP Ltd is a 
subsidiary of Derive Group Co - a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council and 

articles of association have been drafted for that new Company. The other 
subsidiary companies including Derive PRS and Derive Dev Co. have not 
currently been incorporated but can be progressed, as required, when the 

private rented sector element is developed and development activity 
increases.  

 
5. A Shareholder Agreement has also been drafted between Salford City 

Council, Derive Group Co and Derive RP Ltd. Its intention is to set out the 

relationship between the Council, Group Co and Derive RP with clear 
expectations across a broad range of activities. It also requires all the parties 

to comply with covenants relating to Derive RP’s obligations as a Registered 
Provider. 
 

6. The Regulator requires Registered Providers to have independent board 
members and two independents have been recruited to the Derive RP Board. 

Robin Lawler has been recruited to undertake the role of independent chair 
and Greg Gottig has been recruited as the independent board member. Both 
have significant experience of being on registered provider boards. 

 
7. Derive RP’s articles of association also require 3 directors to be council 

directors. These can either be officers or Members of the Council. Cllr Kelly 
and Cllr Merry hold two of these positions, with the third council director to be 
agreed. 

Page 4



 3 

 
REGISTRATION OF DERIVE RP  

 

8. An application to the Regulator of Social Housing (RoSH) for the registration 
of Derive RP as a registered provider is underway. It is a two-stage process. 

The first stage – the preliminary application requires applicants to establish 
that they are an English body which are, or intend to become, a provider of 
social housing in England. A preliminary application was submitted towards 

the end of last year and following an assessment Derive RP was invited to 
submit a detailed application.  

 
9. The purpose of the detailed application is for the applicant to demonstrate that 

they satisfy the criteria set by the regulator as to its financial situation, its 

constitution and other arrangements for its management.  
 

10. The assessment of the detailed application can take up to 6 months. The 
regulator advises that they take a proportionate approach to assessing 
compliance and recognise that applicants will be at different stages in their 

development. Derive RP does not currently have a track record so the 
regulator will be looking for its application to demonstrate from its current way 

of working that it will be compliant with the Regulatory Standards from the 
point of registration onwards.  

 
DERIVE RP’S BUSINESS PLAN  

 
11. The initial Derive RP Business Plan commits to providing 129 homes across 

four sites at social rent to be delivered between January 2022 to August 2022.  
 

12. The delivery of these 129 units will be funded through a combination of Dérive 
borrowing (repaid over forty years through the rental income generated from 
the homes calculated on a site by site basis) and secured grant funding 

provided by Homes England and through GMCA (Brownfield Land Grant). It is 
intended that the Council will lend Dérive the funds at an interest rate. The 

overall cost of the units is estimated to be £19.917m (including stamp duty) 
which will be incurred over an approximate 12-month period as the units are 
delivered. 

 
13. Revenue forecasts of income and expenditure for the four sites show that the 

level of borrowing is viable and can be supported over a forty-year period. The 
forecasts show relatively small surpluses in the first five years with an overall 
estimated surplus at the end of the forty years of £1.8M. These forecasts are 

based on a number of financial assumptions including initial rent levels, voids, 
inflation and tax. These will be reviewed and updated on an annual basis. 

 
14. The Business Plan is modelled on the basis that net rental revenue funds the 

operation and management of Dérive RP and that any surpluses are used to 

support the business objectives.   It is anticipated that Dérive RP will be self-
financing, with all liabilities being met from available rental income cashflows 

as they fall due.   
 

Page 5



 4 

15. The provision of loan funding of £8.485M to Derive RP from the council will be 
made on the basis of a 40 year repayment term, with the first repayment of 
principle and interest being made 12 months after drawdown and on an 

annual basis thereafter.  
 

16. A number of provisions have been included within the operational budget 
including a provision for lifecycle maintenance of the properties from year 6 
onwards; and company running costs. Sensitivity analysis has also been 

undertaken on some key components including inflation and interest rate 
changes. 

 
DEVELOPMENT UPDATES  

 

17.  The current business plan for Derive RP provides for 129 homes across 4 
sites. These four schemes are currently on site – three are being delivered 

directly by the council through a build contract with Seddon with the fourth site 
– Kara St being developed by Salix Homes – as part of a wider development 
of the Seedley South site. These schemes are also being supported with 

Homes England funding and GMCA Brownfield Housing Fund. It is intended 
that all these homes will be purchased by Derive RP subject to Derive RP 

being registered as Registered Provider with the regulator. 
18.  

 No. of homes Tenure  SOS PC 

Brassington 
Avenue, 

Ordsall 
 

Total: 12 units 
5x2b hses  

(Inc.2xM4(3)  
7x3b hses  

 

100% 
Social rent 

March 21 January 22 

Ryall Avenue, 
Ordsall  
 

Total: 41 units 
4x2b hses 
2x3b hses  

 
14x1b apts 

21x2b apts  
(Inc.4x M4(3)) 
 

100%  
Social rent 

March 21 August 22 

Clifton Green, 
The Green  

Total: 51 units 
2x3b hses 
2x4b hses  

 
27x1b apts 

(Inc.3xM4(3)) 
20x2b apts 
(Inc.2xM4(3)) 

 

100% 
Social rent 

March 21 July 22  

Kara St, 
Seedley 

South  

Total: 25 units  
4x2b hses 

4x3b hses  
 
17x1b apts 

100% 
Social rent  

March 21 Sept 22  

Page 6



 5 

 
 

19.  The first sites are progressing with Seddon as our contractor. One site is 

behind schedule – due to some unexpected old foundations – and the 
contractor has been asked to review and advise on making up the delay. 

There have also been some issues with approval of bricks which is likely to 
result in some delay. The extent of this will be understood in more detail once 
the bricks are approved and lead in times are understood. The contractor will 

be expected to mitigate this as much as possible. Material shortages across 
the board have been flagged as an issue and Seddon are mitigating with the 

early ordering of materials and alternative suppliers if required. This will be 
closely monitored.  
 

20. The fourth site – Kara St – is being developed through Salix Homes – as part 
of their development of the wider Seedley south scheme. Heads of terms for 

the purchase of 25 units from Salix have been agreed.  
 

21.  The council is also progressing three other sites as part of its direct housing 

delivery programme. These three schemes are:  Longshaw Drive, Irwell Valley 
and the St Lukes site.  

 
 No of homes  Tenure  SOS  PC  

Longshaw 
Dr., Little 
Hulton  

 

Total: 178 units  
31x2b hses 
(Inc.2xM4(3)) 

70x3b hses 
(Inc.4xM4(3)) 

30x4b hses 
(inc.4xM4(3) 
1x5b hses  

(Inc.1xM4(3) 
 

30x1b apts 
15x2b apts  
 

26% social  
26% affordable 
24% PRS 

24% sales  

TBC TBC 

Irwell Valley, 

Blandford 
Street 

 
The 
Broughton 

Trust 

Total: 45 units 

11x2b hses 
7x3b hses 

3 x4b hses  
 
3xstudio apts 

13x1b apts 
(Inc.1xM(4)3) 

8x2b apts 
(Inc.2xM(4)3)  
 

TBC TBC TBC 

 

St Lukes 
(Kerrera 
Drive) 

 

Total: 68 units 
 
Derive 44 units 

ICT 24 units  

TBC TBC TBC 

Page 7



 6 

Derive / 

Inspiring 
Communities 
Together 
 

 

20 hses 
(Inc.2xM4(3) 
hses) 

 
24 apts 

(Inc.2xM4(3) 
apts)  

 
 

22. A planning application has been submitted for Longshaw Drive and a number 
of issues are currently being worked through with planners prior to its 

determination. A procurement process has been undertaken utilising a 2 stage 
tender process and a report is being presented to Procurement Board on 28 th 
July 2021 to seek approval to award a contract to Crossfield construction as a 

construction partner to select a design and finalise costs. The finalising of the 
costs will allow the affordability of the scheme to be confirmed and further 

approval will then be sought form the council and the Derive RP board. A 
successful bid to the GMCA Brownfield Housing Fund for £2.9M of grant will 
help support the site remediation and development of this former school site 

for a mixed tenure scheme and a bid for the affordable homes is being made 
to Homes England. Further work is required on this scheme to secure clean 

title to the whole site. 
 

23.  A planning application has also been submitted for the Irwell Valley High 

School site and it is anticipated that the scheme will be considered at the 
September 2021 planning meeting. The proposals involve the retention of the 

Tree of Knowledge.  It is intended that the completed scheme will be disposed 
of to the Broughton Trust – as part of their plans to establish a registered 
provider which will enable them to hold properties. A memorandum of 

understanding has been agreed between the Council and the Broughton Trust 
with further work being undertaken to ensure that they are in a position to 

purchase the properties upon completion. This scheme also requires further 
work to ensure that it can be delivered in a financially viable way as regrettably 
it did not secure brownfield land grant funding   

 
24. The third site at St Lukes is subject to further discussions with planners prior 

to the submission of a planning application. 24 of these homes will be 
transferred to Inspiring Housing who are also in the process of establishing 
themselves as a registered provider. A memorandum of understanding has 

been agreed between the Council and Inspiring Housing with further work 
being undertaken to ensure that they are in a position to purchase the 

properties upon completion. A successful bid to the GMCA Brownfield 
Housing Fund for £700K of grant will help support the site remediation and 
development of this former school site for a mixed tenure scheme and a bid 

for the affordable homes is being made to Homes England.  
 

 
 
 

Page 8



 7 

DERIVE GROUP CO.  

 
25.  Derive Salford became operational in June 2018. It has now become the 

group parent and owns 47 homes with a business plan through to 23/24 to 
deliver a total of 127 homes. It is not intended to transfer these homes to 

Derive RP and they will remain within Derive Group Co. The table below 
identifies the two schemes currently on site with a pipeline of property 
handovers.  

 
26. These homes are being funded through a combination of Derive borrowing 

(repaid over 30 years through the rental income generated from the homes) 
and subsidy form the council through capital grant. These homes are not 
eligible for Homes England as Derive Group Co is not / and will not become a 

registered provider. 
 

 

 
 

 
No of homes 

 
Tenure  

 
SOS 

 
PC 
 

 

Hilton Lane  
 

 

Total: 42 hses  
 

6x4b hses 
30x3b hses  
6x2b hses  

 

Social / 
affordable  

 

Developer on 
site – with 

Derive units 
being 
delivered over 

2 years  
 

 

1st homes 
expected in 

November 21  

 

Charlestown 
Phase 3  
 

 

Total: 22 hses  
 
10x2b hses 

8x3b hses 
4x4b hses 

 

Social / 
affordable  

 

Developer on 
site with 
phased 

handovers.  

 

Phased 
handovers – 
further 8 

homes 
anticipated in 

21/22. 
 

 

27. It is anticipated that a total of 236 properties will be owned and managed 
within the Derive companies by the end of 2022/23.  

 

28. The current homes are managed by Salix Homes and a 12 month contract 
extension has been negotiated with them through to August 2022. This 

contract will also include the first Derive RP homes. A procurement exercise is 
planned early next year to ensure that a new contract is in place from August 
2022.  

 
FUTURE AMBITION  

 
29. There is an aspiration to deliver 3000 homes over the next 10 years. Work is 

ongoing assessing the viability of council owned sites for development and 

Page 9



 8 

developing a pipeline of sites. Each scheme will be subject to an individual 
business case.  
 

30. It is also recognised that the council has limited land in its ownership and sites 
can come with practical challenges. Non-self-build options are also being 

considered including buy direct from developers, strip income lease deals and 
acquiring / leasing existing properties. Each scheme will be subject to an 
individual business case.     

 
 

 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Salford’s Housing Strategy Our home, our city 2020-2025. 
Salford’s Homelessness Strategy 2018-2023. 

 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium  
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  - Supplied by: Peter Hassett – Shared Legal 
Services 0161 611 8968 & Matthew Waters Bevan Brittan LLP  
 

The power to appoint to external bodies is a function exercised by the Elected City 
Mayor. 
 

The Council has the power to provide funding under a range of powers including s.1 
Localism Act 2011 and s.24 Local Government Act and s.24 Local Government Act 
1988 (1988 Act), the latter providing the power to provide financial assistance for 

privately let housing. S.25 1988 Act requires that s.24 1988 Act (or any similar 
power) is not exercised without the consent of Secretary of State. Consent C of the 

2010 General Consents provides a broad consent for financial assistance which 
would cover the proposed loans. 
 

 
 

Page 10



 9 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Mee – Strategic Finance 
Manager Ext 0434 

The cost of schemes are built into the approved capital programme funded from a 
combination of self-financing borrowing and grant funding on the basis that all units 
will ultimately be funded by Derive on their transfer at completion. The affordability of 

individual schemes and agreement to proceed with other Derive projects will be 
required both from the council and the Derive board. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  
There are no procurement implications from this report but any future build contracts 
will be procured in line with the Council’s procurement rules.  

 

HR IMPLICATIONS  
None  

 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
The intention is for the homes owned and managed by Derive RP to make a positive 

contribution to the city’s efforts in relation to climate change and the low carbon 
agenda.  The planned homes are being designed and built to achieve a low 

carbon/low energy standard, using a fabric first low carbon/low energy approach 
helping to support policy priorities at a city and GM level for all new builds and 
ensuring on-going low energy costs for residents.   

    
The procurement of contractors to date has also included reference to social value 

which allows contractors to consider positive environmental impacts.   

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Legal, Finance and Place directorate colleagues. 

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Leigh  TEL NO: 0161 793 2155 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All  
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Lime E-scooter Trial
in Salford

26th July 2021

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



Background to Trial

• Currently E-Scooters are currently classed as a motor vehicle and are currently 
illegal to use.  

• DfT proposed a trial to test the operation of Electric Scooters on the highways, on 
a hired basis only in association with a local authority.

• Salford City Councill in partnership with TfGM were the only LA in GM to show an 
expression of interest to participate in trial in in August 2020.

• Rochdale have subsequently started a trail which began in March 2021 

P
age 14



Selection of operators

• An open invite was put out to companies to tender to run the service and we had 
15 initial expressions of interest.

• The providers were narrowed down to short listed of  5 operators who were 
invited to present  their business case and a day of testing the E-Scooters 

• Lime were subsequently decided as the preferred provider, with a view to 
commencing the trial in October 2020.

• As part of the E-Scooter trial Lime are working with the University of Salford to 
undertake research on the trial and perceptions of E-Scooters.

P
age 15



Salford E-scooter Trial
• The trial was scheduled in 3 phases, which were 

agreed with Lime at the outset of the project.

❖Phase 1: Commenced October 2020 on University 
of Salford  Peel Park and Fredrick Road campus

❖Phase 2: Commenced February 2021 between 
University of Salford Campus and Media City

❖Phase 3: Commenced May 2021 to include Ordsall
and the Salford City Centre areas. 

Trial areas

• The areas were chosen based on potential usage and phased to see how each 
phase was received and address any potential issues before expanding.

P
age 16



How do the Scooters work

P
age 17



Usage
• To date we have had:

❖ 80,000 individual trips 

❖ 30,000 unique riders

❖ 100,000 mile ridden

• The majority of trips are between Middlewood Locks/UofS and Chapel 
Street/Manchester City Centre

• The usage is above Lime’s expectations and has shown a higher user per E-
Scooter than other UK areas operated by Lime, of roughly 2-3 uses per E-Scooter.

P
age 18



Lime
• While Lime were partly chosen due to their previous experience of E-Scooter 

schemes in various cities they have also helped to generate a number of local 
employment opportunities associated to the scheme.

• In Salford, Lime currently employ a team of 12, which consist of:

❖8 rangers - most of these use e-vans to collect the E-Scooters

❖1 shift lead

❖2 mechanics

❖1 mechanic lead

• Any further expansion to the trial area, would necessitate an increase in 
operatives to help manage the scheme.

P
age 19



Issues
• We have had relatively low levels of vandalism or theft, with a few E-scooters 

being taken out of the trial area, but most of the E-Scooters being retrieved by 
Lime.

• Where E-Scooters are left outside of the parking bays Lime’s team of Rangers are 
instructed to retrieve these and either move them back into the parking bay or 
take them back to their depo to be recharged and mechanically checked.

• We had had a few complaints from members of the public. These are from May 
onwards reflecting the expanded operational area. the complaints are general in 
nature rather than specific instances. 

• Compared to Mobike Bike hire scheme 

P
age 20



Next Steps
• The Trial was original granted for 12 month period. The DfT have invited Local 

Authorities to extend their trial  period to 31 March 2022.

• A new further extension of the trial area is proposed to link up with Salford Royal 
Hospital and routes in between this and the existing trail areas.

• The expansion and current areas of operation have been discussed with the Lead 
Member for Planning & Sustainable Development and the relevant ward 
members.

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 

 
Date: Monday, 5th July 2021, 6.00pm – 7.55pm, at 100 Embankment, Cathedral Approach, Salford. 

 
Present:  Councillor Sharpe  –  in the Chair  

Councillors Brabiner, Davies, Humphreys, Nelson, Pevitt and Tetteh 
 

Officers: Peter Openshaw – Interim Strategic Director for Place 

  Claire Edwards – Democratic Services 
 
Present via MS Teams: 

Shoaib Mohammad – Assistant Director Technical Services 
Dylan Vince  – Project Manager Technical, Pendleton PFI Team 
Lee Evans  – Transport Engineer 
Chris Smith  – Head of Infrastructure 

  
1. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Brooks, R. Garrido, Lewis, Shama and 
Ward. 

 
2. Declarations of interest 

 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. Additional Energy Support Payments Pendleton Together High-Rise Blocks 
 

Dylan Vince presented a report from Pendleton Together which provided an update on the impact of the 
removal of cladding and insulation from the Pendleton High Rise blocks on residents ’ energy 
consumption and the support provided by Pendleton Together to residents. 
 
The report provided information on: 
 

 Background to why the payments are being made. 
 How the payment was initially assessed, and how, through monitoring of actual resident bills, 

Pendleton Together increased this to the current £25 per month to better reflect actual energy 
usage.   

 Details of engagement and support provided by Pendleton Together Staff 
 Analysis of investigations into residents increased energy use over the winter 202/21 
 Outcomes of investigations and resident support including how increased payments have been 

made where residents have evidenced increased usage, and adequacy of payments across all 
properties 

 
Councillor Tetteh made reference to a number of issues that his friend, a tenant at Spruce Court, had 
experienced which included his heating bills having increased over the winter months as a result of his 
flat becoming colder, noise and disturbance that had taken place during the fire safety works and poor 
communication in respect of those works.  He also referred to residents having been contacted by a 
claims management company encouraging them to claim through the disrepair process. 
 
Dylan Vince made reference to the proactive support that Pendleton Together had provided, as outlined 
in the report, to ensure that residents were able to continue to heat their properties without being 
financially disadvantaged and that in some cases where residents had issues additional payments 
could be made.  He also referred to the hard work that Pendleton Together had undertaken to keep 
residents informed throughout the fire safety works, having put in place a new resident liaison team to 
provide additional support and communication.  He reported that the council were aware that a claims 
management company had been targeting the estate and that Pendleton Together were in the process 
of dealing with a number of disrepair claims that had been made against the Council.  He indicated that 
he would liaise with Councillor Tetteh outside the meeting with regard to the issues that his friend had 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



2 

 

experienced and encouraged all repairs or tenancy issues to be reported to Pendleton Together who 
have been responding to many of the issues raised. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report be noted. 

 

4. Transport Update 

 
Chris Smith and Lee Evans gave a presentation providing an update on transport issues which included 
reference to the following: 
 

 Transport Vision 
 GM 2040 Transport Strategy & Delivery Plan 
 Salford Investment Map 
 Bee Network 
 Update on Our Streets for All Vision and how our Streets in Greater Manchester have different 

roles 
 Levelling Up Fund Bids 
 Programme Update 

o Emergency Active Travel Fund (EAT) 2020/21 
o Active Travel Fund (ATF) 2021/22 
o Mayors Challenge fund (MCF) 

 
Discussion took place regarding a variety of issues which included reference to the following: 
 

 The need for public transport to cater for the growing night-time economy as well as for people 
needing to travel to employment outside of usual working hours.  It was indicated that 
discussions were taking place with TfGM regarding these issues. 
 

 The works that were being undertaken in respect of the A5063 Trafford Road improvement 
scheme which included the optimisation of the traffic signals, provision of additional traffic lanes 
to assist turning traffic and improved facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, to support access to 
MediaCityUK, Salford Quays and Ordsall. 

 

 The need for additional investment in the transport infrastructure in Irlam and Cadishead, 
particularly in light of the growing population in that part of the city.  Information was shared with 
members on previous investment made in walking and cycling routes and park and ride 
infrastructure through grant funding. Bids have previously been to the Mayors Walking and 
Cycling Challenge Fund (MCF) for reopening Cadishead Viaduct as a walking / cycling route 
although this was not successful. Additional investment in new lifts at Irlam Station is also 
planned through the DfT’s Access for All fund.  Members aspirations are noted and officers 
continue to look for potential opportunities with regard to the area. 

 

 Swinton Greenway 
o Reference was made to the consultation that had been undertaken and whether 

consideration had been given to women’s needs in terms of design, safety, etc.    It was 
noted that a Community Impact Assessment had been undertaken in respect of the 
scheme.  It was indicated that details of the questions that had been included in the 
consultation would be shared with the panel. 

o It was reported that lighting was to be provided along Swinton Greenway which was 
welcomed by panel members. 

 

 The first city centre Bee Network walking and cycling route along Blackfriars Street, funded 
through the Active Travel Fund, having recently been launched by Greater Manchester’s 
Transport Commissioner, Chris Boardman, and the City Mayor. 
 

 The need to encourage neighbouring conurbations to work together to improve connectivity 
between local authorities. 

Page 24



3 

 

 

 Conflict between pedestrians and cyclists on loop lines, canal towpath, etc., and whether it 
would be possible for signage to be implemented to try to address this issue. 
 

 Work that was being undertaken involving local organisations and community groups with 
regard to the provision of cycle safety training. 
 

 The importance of providing secure cycle parking in appropriate locations in the city. 
 

 RHS Bridgewater – it was reported that a new crossing was to be located on the East 
Lancashire Road as part of the works in relation to RHS Links, which would address the 
concerns that exist and was welcomed by the panel. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the presentation and comments be noted. 

 

5. Draft Work Programme 

 
The following items were suggested for inclusion on the Work Programme: 

 
 Wildlife, Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure. 
 Housing Services - allocation and tenure. 
 Impact of the end of the furlough scheme on businesses in Salford. 
 Public Transport including Bus Network/Services. 
 Transport Safety/Security (including cycle lanes, conflict between pedestrians and cyclists on 

loopline/canal towpath, lighting, security on public transport (female passengers, LGBT community, 
etc). 

 Trams (future plans – including possibility of charging points at stations) 
 Review of Travel Plans developed through planning applications. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the above items be added to the abeyance list. 

 

6. Date of Next Meeting 

 
RESOLVED: THAT it be noted that the next meeting was scheduled to take place on Monday 26th July at 
6.00pm (Briefing for panel members at 5.30pm). 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME (JULY 2021) 

 

Date  Agenda Item(s) 
 

26 July 
 

 Derive (Andrew Leigh) 
 LIME E-Scooters Update (Andrew Fisher) 
 Update re. incidents of flooding over weekend of 9th July (Matt Ryan) 

 
ABEYANCE LIST 

 

 Wildlife, Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure. 

 Housing Services - allocation and tenure. 
 Affordable Housing 

 Impact of the end of the furlough scheme on businesses in Salford. 
 Public Transport including Bus Network/Services. 
 Transport Safety/Security (including cycle lanes, conflict between pedestrians and cyclists on loopline/canal towpath, lighting, security on 

public transport (female passengers, LGBT community, etc). 
 Trams (future plans – including possibility of charging points at stations) 

 Review of Travel Plans developed through planning applications. 
 Update on Town Centres (Swinton/Eccles) 
 Local Plan 

 Impact of Covid-19 on the Clean Air Plan. 
 Update on Salford University Business Park. 

 
Portfolio of the Board: 

 
Membership (12 Members): 

 

1. Physical regeneration. 
2. Business investment and programmes. 

3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery. 
4. Pendleton PFI. 

5. Urban Vision. 
6. Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private). 
7. Environmental sustainability. 

8. Climate change. 
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood authority. 

10. To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional area. 
 

Councillor Brabiner 
Councillor Brooks 

Councillor Davies 
Councillor R. Garrido 

Councillor Humphreys 
Councillor Lewis 
Councillor Nelson 

Councillor Pevitt (VC) 
Councillor Shama 

Councillor Sharpe (C) 
Councillor Tetteh 
Councillor Ward 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



 

 2 

 

P
age 28


	Agenda
	 Guidance on the return to face to face meetings from 7 May 2021
	3 Derive Update.
	4 LIME E-Scooters Update.
	6 Minutes of meeting held on 5 July 2021 and matters arising.
	7 Draft Work Programme.

